AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH THE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017



AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

INDEX PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
STATEMENT QOF FINANCIAL POSITION 2-3
STATEMENT OF INCOME - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS 4
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS 5
STATEMENT OF INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS® OPERATIONS 6
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS” QPERATIONS 7
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY R
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS 8
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS 10

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11-64



Aldar Audit ﬁusgau

A B %

GrantThornton A« imstmet for groseth

pwe

Independent Auditors® Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Al Rajhi Company for Cooperstive Insurance (A Saudi Joint
Steck Company) :

Opinion

We have andited the financial statements of Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance {the “Company™,
whicit comprise the statement of financial position as at Decernber 31, 2017, the statements of income and
comprehensive income - takaful operations, income and comprehensive income - shareholders® operations,
statements of changes in sharsholders® equity and cash flows for takaful and shareholders’ operations for the yeat
then ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes from | 1o 28.

In our opinion, the accompanying tinancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at December 31, 2017, and financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Pinancial Reporting Standards {"IFRE”) as modified by Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority (“SAMA™) for the accounting of zakat and hcome tax.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I8A5™) a5 endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors®
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethies, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key sudit matters are those matters thas, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance in our audiz of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed i the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, a description of how our audit addressed the muttsr provided in that context:
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Andit of the Financial Statements
Te the Sharcholders of Al Rajhi Company for Cooperafive Insurance (A Saudi Joint Stock

Company) {continued)

Key Audit Matters (continned)

Vulugtion of ultihmate cieim liabilities arising from
nsurance coniracts

As ar 31 December 2017, owstanding claims
including claims incurred but not reported (IBMNR)
amounted to Saudi Riyals 893.23 million as reported
in Note 13 o the financial statements.

The esthmation of uitimate insurance contract
liabiities involves a significant degree of judgment.
The Habilities are based on the best-estimate of
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at a
given date, whether reported or not, together with the
related claims handling costs,

In particular, estimates of IBNR and the use of
actwwial  and  statistical projections  involve
significant judgment. A range of methods e.g. Chain
ladder method, Bomhuetter ferguson method,
expected Jogs ratio method ete. are used by the
actuary to determing these provisions, Underlying
these methods are a number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating 10 the expected settlement
amount and settlement patiems of claims.

We considered this as 4 key audit matter as the
determination of ultimate claim labilities arise from
insurance coniracts is subjective and relies on
management assumptions and judgements

Refer to the significant accounting pelicies note 3 1o
the financial statements, note 6 which explain the
vafuation methudology used by the Company and
critical judgments and estimates,

We understood and tested key controls around the
¢laims handling and provision setting processes of the
Company and accuracy of claims data used in the
actuarial reserving process,

We ovaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s expert by examining
their professional qualifications and experiences and
assessing their relationship with the entity.

We tegted, on saynple basis, the accurscy ofunderlying
claims data wilized by the Compsany’s actuary in
estimating the IBNR,

We involved owr actusry to understand and evaluate
the Company’s actuarial practives and the provisions
established in order to challenge management's
mathodologies and assumptions. Quwr actuary:

- evaiated whether the Company's attuarial
methodologles were consistent with those used in
the industry and with prior periods. We sought
expianations  from  management for any
significant differences.

-~ assessed key actuarial assumptions including
¢laims ratios, and expected frequency and severity
of claims, We challenged these assumptions by
comparing them with our expectations based an
the Company’s historical experience, current
trends and our own industry knowledge.

- reviewed the appropriateness of the calcalation
methods and approach along with the assumptions
used and sensitivities 1o the key assumptions,
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Independent Auditors® Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Al Rajhi Company for Cooperstive Insurance (A Saudi Joint Stock
Company) (continned)

Other Information included in the Company’s 2017 Annual Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Directors) are responsible for the other information. The other
information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2017 annual report, other than the financial
statements and our suditors report thereon. The annual rEPOrt is expected to bemade available to us after the date
of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements doea not cover the other information and we do nol and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial Slatwments, owr responsibility is o resd the other nformation
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materislly inconsistent with the
financial siatements or owr knowledge obtained in the sudit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is n material misstatement therein, we are required
e communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Directors and these Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemenis

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the IFRS as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tux, the applicable requirements of
the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s by-laws, and for such intemal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia} statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
8s & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern hasis
of rccounting unless Directors either intends to liquidute the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Anditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurancs about whether the financial statements as a whole sre free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 18sue an auditors® report that includes our apinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in sccordance
with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when if exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of wsers teken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticisim throughout the audit. We also:

»  [dentify and assess the risks of material missttement of the financial staternents, whether due to frand or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

*  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design andit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control;

+  Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting palicies used and the reasonsbleness of accounting estimates and
related disclosurez made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditors® Report on the Audit of the Finaacial Statements
To the Sharcholders of Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance (A Saudi Joint Stock
Company) {continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finuneial Statements (continued)

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material ugcertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial staiements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as a going poncern; and

¢ Lvalvate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial stafements represent the enderlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We commumicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maiters, the plamned scope and
Hming of e audit and significant andit findings, meluding any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant sthival
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appticable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we defermine those maters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statemenis of the current pericd and ave therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless Jaw or regulation prectudes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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AL RAJTHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16

Notes SR°000 SR’ 000
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' ASSETS
Banl balances and cash 7 579,282 388,772
Contributions and re-takaful balances receivable, net & 263,285 310,802
Financiel essets at fair value through profit or loss 1) 124,829 13,101
Available-for-sale financial assets 11 {ilc) - 15,096
Financial assets at amortised cost 1fi)(e) 1,284,094 -
Held-to-maturity invesimenis H{i){a) - 705,600
Advances and prepayments 12 15,905 13,797
Re-takaful share of owtstanding claims 13 ¢a) 142,473 95,709
Re-takaful share of unsarned contributions 14 (c) 91,7109 69,666
Re-takaful share of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 114 58
Deferred policy acquisition costs 14 {a) 35,789 30,366
Due from sharcholders' operations 204,322 196,822
Other assets 18,171 9,195
TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS® ASSETS 2,759,973 1,343,384
SHAREHOLDERS'’ OPERATIONS' ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 7 251,159 85,248
Finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1B} 32,481 82,047
Financial assets at fair velue through other comprehensive income 1) 84,766 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 1ifie) - 86,303
Financial assets at amortised cost 1 Xiiifa) 85,016 -
Held-to-maturity investments Hfipfa) - 180,000
Management fees receivable ~ from takaful operations 343,709 169,553
Advances and prepayments 12 15,805 13,333
Property and equipment, net g 18,936 20,005
Statutory deposits 10 39,968 49,000
Accrued income — statutory deposits 2,565 1,635
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS’ ASSETS 874,405 678,144
TOTAL ASSETS 3,634,378 2,526,528

.:ﬁﬁ QW /";;%

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December

31-Dee-17  3i-Dec-16

Notes SR'000 SR'000
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES
Gross outstanding claims 13(a) 893,230 542,610
Gross unearned comntributions Hte) 1,304,110 996,386
Unearned re-takaful commission income 14(8) 7,072 6,728
Payables, accruals and other liabilities 15 80,497 51,891
Management fees payable — to-shareholders’ operations 343,709 169,553
Re-takaful balances payable 66,318 50,679
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 22 30,595 14,196
Other reserves - 134

2,725,531 1,832,177
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' SURPLUS

Surplus distributable to policyhelders 34,442 16,111
Fair value reserve - 04
TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 2,759,973 1,848,384

SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Payables to SAMA 3,473 2,564
Provision for Zakat & tax 17 (b} 26,490 18,391
Payables, accruals and other linbilities 15 31,777 21,133
Dug to takaful operations 204,322 196,322
Employees' end of service benefits 162 14,283 8,871
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES 276,345 248,781
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 18 400,000 400,000
Statutory reserve 19 54,297 17,725
Fair value reserve 11 (e 1,552 502
Retained carnings 142,211 11,136
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 598,060 429,363

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS®’ OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY 874,405 678,144

TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS' LIARILITIES AND SURFLUS
AND SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS® LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY 3634378 2,526,528

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Finangial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF INCOME - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31 December

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Notes SR'000 SR*060
Gross contributions written 14 (o) 3,193,474 1,948,650
Re-takaful contributions cedad {105,981) (77,752)
Excess of loss {14,475) {14,545)
NET CONTRIBUTIONS WRITTEN 14 () 3,073,018 1,856,353
Change in unearned contributions, net (285,681) {320,171}
NET CONTRIBUTIONS EARNED 14 2,787,337 1,536,182
Policy fees and other income 10,194 6,589
Re-takaful commission incotme 14 (b) 12,243 12,573
TOTAL UNDERWRITING
REVENUE 2,809,774 1,555,344
Gross claims paid 13 faj (2073,776) (1,128,852)
Re-takaful share of claims paid 13 fa) 31,920 40,555
NET CLAIMS PAID (2,041,856) (1,088,257)
Movement in outstanding claims, net (303,856} (196,588)
NET CLAIMS INCURRED (2,345,712) (1,284,885)
Inspection and supervision fees (20,181) {11,634
Policy acquisition costs 14 (a) (94,456) (43,136)
Other expenses (10,250) (8,333
Change in financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (15,382) (8,604)
Other income 5,809 3,913
TOTAL CLAIMS AND OTHER
EXPENSES {2,480,172) (1,354,679
NET UNDERWRITING SURPLUS 329,602 200,665
Special commission income 28,053 21,786
Net gains on investments mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or
loss 5370 -
Impairment loss 6.1} {416) -
Management fee for adminisiration of
takaful operaticns 21 (173,601) {135.297)
Net surplus for the vear 189,008 87.154
Management foe attributabie to
shargholders’ operations (170,108) (78,439
NET SURPLUS MSTRIBUTABLE
TO POLICYHOLDE 18,900 8,715
Ll
Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31 December

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR*000 SR’000
Net surplus distributable te policyholders 18,900 8,715
her comprehiensive income o be reclassified subsequent!
to the statement of income:
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale investments 74
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 18,900 8,789

——o=d QW K/ﬁ_

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial staterments,
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF INCOME — SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December

REVENUE

Management fee for administration of takeful operations
Management fee attributable to shareholders® operations
Dividend income

Net gains on investments mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Net change in fair value of investments held as fair value
through income statement

Special commission income on held to maturity investments
Reversal of impairment lass

Realised gain on sale of available for sale investments
Other income

TOTAL REVENUE
General and administrative expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
(SAUDI RIYALS)

Notes

21
5.315

11 (1) (@

6.1.1 (b ii

21

25

)%

3-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016
SR*Q00 SR*000
fRestated)
173,601 135,297
170,108 78,439
3,407 3,699
2,385 -
- 4,733
4,576 9,614
67 -
- 758
2,127 1,784
356,471 234,324
{173,601) {135,297}
182,870 99,027
457 2.48

A

Ahmed Suiaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedeas

Member-Board Chief Executive Officer
The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an jntegral part of these financial statements.

Robert Pereira
Chief Financial Officer
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME — SHAREHOLDERS® OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December

Income from operations

Ire wiil not be recyeled to statement of inconte i

Net gains on equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Items that may be recycled to statement of income in
subsequent periods:

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale investments

TOTAL COMPFREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

Notes

1))

==t Y)Y

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR’0a0 SR'000

{Restated)

182,870 99,027

1,552 -

- 241

184,422 99,268

L

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohammed Al Sedess

Meamber-Board Chief Executive Officer
The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Robert Pereira
Chief Financigl (fficer
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December

Share  Statutory  Fair Value Retained
Capital Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
SR*000 SR'000 SR’000 SR*00 SR*000
Balance as at 1 January 2016 400,000 - 261 (59,766) 340,495
Total comprehensive income: (restated)
Income from operations (restated) - - - 59,027 99027
Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investmenis - - 241 - 241
Zakat — [note 5.4 and 17 (b)} (restated) - - - (10,400 {10,400}
Transfer to statutory reserve - 17,725 - (17,725) -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 400,000 17,725 502 11,136 429,363
Balance as at 1 Jarwary 2017 400,000 17,725 502 11,136 429,363
Changes on initial adoption of IFRS 9
{note 5.1 (c)} - - (502) 277 (225)
Restated balance as af 1 January 2017 400,000 17,725 - 11,413 429,138

Total comprehensive income:
Income from opersations - - - 182,870 182,870
Net gains on equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income — {note

G . . 1,552 - 1,552
Zakat— {note 17 (b)} - - - (13,500} (15,500}
Transfer to statutory reserve - 36,372 - (36,572) -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 400,000 34,297 1,552 142,211 598,060

e —ry Uv)/‘ K’/ém

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulaziz Mohemmed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 1o 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
3




AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December
31-Dee-2017  31-Dec-2016

Notes SR'000 SR*000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net surplus distributable to policyholders 18,900 8,715
Adjustment for:
Management fee for administration of takaful operations 21 173,601 135,267
Management fee attributable to shareholders’ operations 3315 170,108 78,439
Unrealised gain on financial assets measured at FVPL 1 i) {961) -
Impairment loss 416 -
Alfowance for doubtful receivables 8 5317 4,837
Net surplus before changes in operating assets and liabilities 367,381 227,288
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contributions and re-takaful balances receivable, net 42,200 {53,896}
Advances and prepayments (2,108) {8,223)
Re-takaful share of outstanding claims (46,764) 14,705
Re-takaful share of unearnad contributions (22,043} 2,107
Re-takaful share of mathematical reserve (56} 119
Deferred policy acquisition costs (5,423) (13,286)
Due from shareholders’ operations (7,500) 6,437
Other assets (8,976) -
Gross outstanding claims 350,620 181,883
Gross uneamned contributions 307,724 318,064
Unearned re-takaful commission income 344 {707
Payables, accruals and cther liabilities 28,606 6,626
Re-takaful balances payable 15,639 {6,274)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 16,399 8,484
Other reserves (134) (667)
Deposit against letters of guarantee (1,150) 2,700
1,034,759 685,360
Management fee paid (169,553) (90,923)
Net cash from operating activities 865,206 594437
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at amottizsed cost (held-to-maturity
imvestments) 1i{i)a) {1,535,000) {1,180,0600)
Redemption of financial agsets at amortised cost (held-to-
maturity investments) 11¢j(a) 955,000 805,000
Purchase of available-for-sale investments - (566.000)
Sale of available-for-sale investments - 557,536
Purchase of financial assets measured at FVPL (2,377,044 -
Sale of financial assets measured at FVPL VET(H )] 2,297,000 -
Purchase of unit linked {nvestments (15,627) (8,123)
Net cash used in investing activities (675,671) (391,567)
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 189,535 202,870
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 376,925 174,055
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR 7 566,460 376,923
Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments 1) - 74

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of thsg financial statements,

= () s

Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdulazi2vf6hfmmed Al Sedeas Robert Pereira
Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — SHAREHOLDERS’ OPERATIONS
For the vear ended 31 December

31-Dec-20617 31-Dec-2016

Notes SR SR’000
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from operations 182,870 99,027
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 2 8,037 9,179
Management fee for administration of takaful operations (173,601) (135,297)
Management fee attributable to sharcholders’ opetations (170,108) (78,439)
Employees® end of service benefits 16.2 2,002 3,260
Reversal of impairment loss 6.1.1 (Biii) 67 -
Unrealized loss on investments at FYPL 1 fip 89 {4,733
Net deficit before changes in operating assets and liabilities {150,936) (107,003}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Advances and prepayments (2472} {3,882)
Accrued income — statutory deposits (910) 895
Payable to SAMA 909 (894
Payables, accruals and others liabilities 10,644 3,205
Due to takaful operations 7.500 (6,437
{135,285) (114,116)

Management fee reccived 169,553 90,923
Zakat paid 17 () (7,401) 1,377
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 16.2 (1,590) (2,000)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 25,277 (26,570)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment Y {6,968) (5,169}
Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost (held-to-maturity

investments) 1{ia) (330,109) {700,000)
Redemption of financial assets at amortised cost (held-to-

maturity investments) 11fih(ai 425,035 710,000
Purchase of financial assets measured at FVPL 1ifiiib) (552,486) (130,000)
Sale of financial assets measured at FVPL G 604,474 122,242
Purchase of equity invesiments designated at FYOCI Hi{itc) {62,139 (99,590)
Sale of equity invesiments designated at FYOCI 11{ti)z) 60,472 99,590
Movement in cash balance in equity share portfolio 1ifiiyc) 2,423 -
Matured Murabaha deposit receivable - 39,038
Net cash from investing activities 140,702 36,111
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 165,979 8,541
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 84,340 74,799
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE

YEAR 7 250,319 84,340
Non-cash suppiementol informarion:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments 11 (i) (o) - 24]
Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI 11 i) (o 1,552 -
The accompanying notesA to 28 form an integral past of thé‘?“quancial stalements. .

0
— ((V)s AL
Ahmed Sulaiman Al Rajhi Abdul2ziz¥ohimméd Al Sedeas Robert Pereira

Member-Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

1 ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance (the “Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial registration number 1010270371 dated 5 Rajab 1430 corresponding
to 28 June 2009. The address of the registered office of the Company is as follows:

Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance
P.0. Box 67791

Riyadh 11517

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The objective of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance business and carry out related activities in
accordance with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies and its implementing eegulations
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. On 28 Dhul-Qi’dah 1430H (corresponding to 17 November 2009), the Company
received its license from the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA) to transact cooperative insurance business
inthe Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company was listed on the Saudi Arabian Stock Exchange ("Tadawul™) on
13 July 2002. The Company received product approvals from SAMA on 17 January 2010.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

al Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material
items
i. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
il. Financial assets measured at fair value thorugh other comprehensive income (FVOCT
ifi. Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

b) Statement of compliance

The Company has prepared these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR.8s} as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax’, which requires, adoption
of all IFRSs as jssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“LASB™} except for the application of
International Accounting Standard (LAS) 12 - “Income Taxes™ and IFRIC 21 - “Levies” so far as these relate
to zakat and income tax. As per the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519 dated April 11, 2017 and subsequent
amendments through certain clarifications relating to the accounting for zakat and income tax (“SAMA
Circular”), the zakat and income tax are to be acerued on a quarterly basis through sharebolders equity under
retained earnings.

The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by Saudi Arabian
insurance regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for Takaful Operations and
Shareholders’ Operations. The physical custody of all assets related to the Takaful Operations and
Shareholders’ Operations are held by the Company. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly
attributable to each operation are recorded in their respective books. As per the Company’s policy, all general
and adminisirative expenses of Takaful Operations are charged to Sharcholders’ Operations. The basis of
allocation of other revenue and expenscs from joint operations is as determined by the management and Board
of Directors.

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable fulure.
Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that mey cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the finencial statements continue (o be
prepared on a going concern basis.

c) Functional and presentation curvency
The functional and presentational currency of the Company is Seudi Riyals. The financial statements values
are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded off to the nearest thousand (SR’000), unless otherwise
indicated.
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION {contimed)

d) Critical accounting judgments estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of estimates ard judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent asseis and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although these
estimates and judgments arc based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities within
the next financial reporting period, Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable inder
the circumstances.

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that were critical in preparation of these financial
statements:

i, Estimation of incurred buf not reported claims

The estimation of the uitimate liability arising from claims made under insutance contracts is the company’s
most ¢ritical accounting estimate. There are severat sources of uncertainty that needs to be considered in the
estimate of the liability that the company will ultimately pay for such claiims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (TRMR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be
reported subsequent to the date of statement of financial position, for which the insured event has ogcurred
prior to the date of statement of financial position The primary technique adopted by management in
estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement trends to predict
future claims settlement trends.

i Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance
The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and

FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions.

Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques vsed in measuring ECL is further detailed
in note 6.1.1, which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elemenis.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, such as:

a. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

b. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

c. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

iit. Fair value of unlisted equity investments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ttansfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement dafe.

The fair value of such securities not quoted in an active market may be determined by the Company using
latest available audited net assets value of the investee. The Company would exercise judgement and estimates
on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used. Where no market data is available, the Company may
value positions using its own models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally
recognised gs standard within the market practice. As of 31 December 2017, the Company has unlisted equity
investments of 3R 6.03 million.

v, Defined benefit scheme

The Company operates an end of service benefit scheme for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor
laws, The liability is being accrued based on projected unit credit method in accordance with the periodic
actuarial valuation. For details of assumptions and estimate please refer note 16,
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-current ¢lassification. However, the
following balances would generally be classified as current: bank balances and cash, contributions and re-takaful
batances receivables, net, financial assets at fair valve through profit or loss, financial assets at amortised cost, advances
and prepaymenis and other assets, gross outstanding claims, gross wmearned contributions, unearned re-takafiil
commission income, payables, accruals and other liabilities, management fees payable, re-takaful balances payable,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other reserves. The following balances would generally be
clagsified as non-current : financial assefs at fair value through other comprehensive income and employees' end of
service benefits.

4 STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS ISSUED

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the Company's annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 20186, except
for the hew and amended stendards and interpretation made in the following which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows on disclosure initiative: Applicable for annual periods beginning
onot after | January 2017, These amendments introduce an additionat disclosure that wilt enable users of financial
staternents to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. This amendment is part of the IASR’s
Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial statement disclosure can be improved. These
adoptions have no material impact on these financial statements hence no disclosures wete made

IFRS 7 - “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has been amended to clarify that a servicing contract that includes
a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. The nature of the fee and the arrangement should
be assessed in order to consider whether the disclosures are required under IFRS 7 and the assessment must be
done retrospectively. IFRS 7 has been further amended to clarify that the offsetting disclosure requitements do
not apply 1o financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant update to the information reported
in the most recent annual report.

IAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” - amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed
based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obiigation is
located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.

IFRS 9 - “Financial instruments”, In July 2014, the IASB published IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which will
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard incorporates new
classification and measurements requirements for financial assets, the introduction of an expected credit loss
impairment model which will replace the incurred loss model of IAS 39, and new hedge accounting requirements,

Under [FRS 9, all financial assets will be measured at either amottised cost or fair value. The basis of classification
will depend on the business model! end the contraciual cash flow characteristics of the financigl assets. The
standard retains most of IAS 39's requirements for financial liabilities except for those designated at fair value
through profit or loss whereby that part of the fair value changes attributable to own credit is to be recognised in
other comprehensive income instead of the income statement.

In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that address the accounting
consequences of the application of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to the publication of the forthcoming accounting
standard for insurance contracts. The amendments introduce two options for insurers: the deferral approach and
the overlay approach. The deferral approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 until the eatlier of the effective date of & new insurance contract standard or 2021.The overlay
approzach allows an entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may
occur before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.

The Company is eligible to apply the deferral approach under the amendments to IFRS 4. The impact of the
adeptien of IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial statements will, to a large extent, have to take into account the
interaction with the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. IASE through its amendments to IFRS 4 issued in
September 2016 had allowed temporary exemption if a Company meets the following criteria:
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AL RATHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

4. STANDARD AND AMENDMENTS ISSUED (continued)

a) The Company has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9; and

b} Its activities are predominantby connceted with insurance that is defined as total percentage of carrying amount
of insurance liabilities is greater than 90% of its total liabilities.

The Company have early adopted the requirements of IFRS 9 as parmitted by the standards.
Standards issued but not yet effective
The following are the standards which are issued bt are not et effective:

TFRS L5 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ - IFRS 15 will replace [AS 18 “Revenue’ and establishes a
principle based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers, except for insurance contracts,
financial instruments and lease contracts. IFRS 15 also includes enhanced disclosure requirements, The impact of
the adoption of the new standard is being assessed by the Company and is not considered significant.

IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The new standard eliminates
the current duaf accounting medel for lessees under IAS 17, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance
leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-balance sheet accounting model. The
Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.

IFRS 17 - “Insurance Contracts”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2021, and will
supersede IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts™. Earlier adoption permitted if both [FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers' and [FRS 9 'Financial Instruments' have also been applied. The Company expects a material
impact on measurement and disclosure of insurance and reinsurance that will affect both the income statement
and the balance sheet. The Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.

§ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these annual financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016
except for the new and amended standards and intetpretations which are effective for ammual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017, early adoption of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” effective from | January 2017 (refer
note 5.1) and change in the accounting policy in relation to accounting for zakat and income tax as a result of
SAMA circular (refer note 5.4).

1) Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows on disclosure initiative: Applicable for annval periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2017

These amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. This amendment is part of the TASR’s Disclosure Initiative,
which continves to explore how financial statement disclosure can be impraved.

The new and revised televant [FRSs effective for the first time for periods beginning on {or aftery 1 January 2017 had
no signiffcant impact on the amounts reported and disclosures in these financial statements except for the early adoption
of [FRS 9, which is narrated below.

5.1 Change in accounting policy

The Company has early adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the [ASB in July 2014 with a date of initial application of 1
January 2017, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously
recognised in the financial statements,

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Company elected not to restate comparative figures.
Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of finencial assets and liabilities at the date of initial application were
recognised in the opening retained earnings and fair value reserve of the current year.

14



AL RATHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)

5.1 Change in accounting policy {continued)

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to [FRS 7 disclosures have also anly been
applied to the current year. The comparative year notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the prier year.
The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in accounting policies for recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also
sighificantly amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:

Disclosures™.

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS ¢ on the Company. Further details of
the specific [FRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current year are described in more detail in note 5.2 below.

a) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with previous
(under IAS 39} and new (under IFRS 9) accounting policies as at 1 January 2017 are compared as follows:

148 39 IFRS ¢
Carrying Carrying
Measurement categary amount__ Measurement catesory amount
SR™OU0 SR’D00
Finamncial assets - Takaful Operations
Bank balances and cash Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables) 388,772 Amortised cost 388,691
Contributions and re-takaful batances  Amortised cost (Loans
receivable, net and receivables) 310,802  Amortised cost 310,802
Unit linked investments FVPL (HeM for trading) 13,101 FVPL {Mandatary) 13,11
Available-for-sale-financial assets FVOCT (Asailable-for-
sale) 15,096 FVPL (Mandatory) 15,096
Held-to-maturity investments Amortised cost (Held to
maturity) 705,000 Amortised cost 704,415
Due from sharcholders’ operations Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables) 196,822  Amortised cost 196,822
Other assets Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables) 9,195  Amortised cost 9,195
Total financial assets 1,638,788 1,638,122
IAS 39 IFRS %
Carrying Carrying
Measurement category amount Measurement category amouni
SR’000 SR000
Financial assets - Sharcholders’
Operations
Amortised cost (Loans
Bank balances and cash and receivables) 85,248 Amortised cost 85,179
Financial assets at fair value FVPL (Held for
through profit or loss trading) 82,047 FVOCI (Designated) 83,970
FvOCI {Available-for-
Available-for-sale financial assets sale) 86,303 FVPL (Mandatory) 84.380
Amortised cost (Held-
Held-to-maturity investments to-marbrity) 180,000 Amortised cost 179,854
Amortised cost (Loans
Management fee receivable and receivables) 169,533  Amortised cost 169,533
Amortised cost (Held-
Statutory deposits to-maturity} 40,000  Amortised cost 39,590
Accrued income — statutory Amortised cost (Loans
deposits and receivables) 1.655 Amortised cost 1,633
Total financial assefs 644,786 44,561
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AL RAJTHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FPOLICIES {continued)
5.1 Change in accounting policy (continued)

a}  Classification and measnrement of financinl instruments (continued)

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities, other than changes in the fair
value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss that are atiributable to changes in the
instrument’s credit risk, which are presented in other comprehensive incoms, if any.

b)  Reconciliation of siatement of finuncial position balances from 145 39 fo IFRS 9

The Company performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial assets particularly
considering the cash flow characteristics of its debt instruments. Please refer to note 3.2 for more detailed
information regarding the new classification requirements of IFRS 9.

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financigl assets which have been impacted from
classification and measurement requirements of IFRS S on 1 January 2017.

IAS 39 IFRS 9
Notes carryim carrying
ying . ampunt |
amount 31 Reclassifi- Remeasure- January 2017
December 2016 cations ments
Takaful Operations SR'000 SR’000 SR000 SR*000
Available-for-sale financial assets A
Opening balance 15,096 - -
To: Investments measured at FYPL - {15,096) -
Closing balance 15,096 (15,096) - -
Investments measured at FVPL, A
Opening balance 13,101 - -
From: Available-for-sale financial ) 15,096 i
assels
Closing balange 13,101 15,096 - 28,197
Financial assels at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Opening balance 388,772 - -
Remeasurement; ECL allowance - - {81)
Closing balance 388,772 - (81) 388,691
TAS 39 IFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount 31 amount 1
December Reclassifi- Remeasure- January
2016 cations ments 2017
Takaful operations SR*000 SR*000 SR'000 SR™000
Amortised cost
Opening balance - - -
From: Held-to-maturity investments - 703,000 -
Remeasurement: ECL allowance - . - (583)
Closing balance - 705,000 (585) 704,413




AL RATHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 20(7

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.1 Change in accounting policy {continued)

&) Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 {continued)

IAS 39
carrying IFRS 9
amount 31 carrving
December Reclassifi- Remeasure- amount 1
Notes 2016 cations ments  Janwvary 2017
Sharcholders® operations SR'000 SR*000 SR 000 SR000
Available-for-sale investmenis B
Opening balance 86,303 - -
To: Investiments measured at FYPL - {84,380) -
To: Investments measured at FVOCT - (1,923) -
Closing balance 86,303 (86,303) - -
Invesiments measured at FVFPL C
Opening balance 82,047 - -
To: Investments measured at FVOC] - {82,047) -
From: Available-for-sale investments - 84,380 -
Closing balance 82,047 2333 - 84,380
Investments measured at FVOC! C
Opening balanee - - -
From: Available-for-sale investments - 1,523 -
From: Investments measured at
FVPL - 82,047 -
Closing balance - 83,750 - 83,970
Financial assets af amoriised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Opening balance 85,248 - -
Remeasurcment: ECL allowance - “ {69)
Closing balance 85,248 - (69) 85,179
Financiol asseis ot amortised cost
Financial assets af amortised cost
Opening balance - - -
From: Held-to-maturity investments - 180,000 -
Remeasurement: ECL allowsance - (146)
Closing balance - 180,000 (146} 179,854
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.1 Change in accounting policy {continued)

&) Reconcilimtion of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 (continued)

IAS39 . IFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount 31 amount 1
December  Reclassifi- Remeasure  January
2016 cations -ments 2017
Statuiory deposiis - Financial assets
at amortised cost SR000 SR°000 SR*000 SRM000
Financial assets at amortised ¢ost
Opening balance - - -
From: Held to maturity - 40,000 -
Remeasurement: ECL allowance - - (i0)
Closing balance - 40,000 (10) 39,990

The follewing notes explain how applying the new classification requitements of IFRS ¢ led to changes in
classification of certain financial assets held by the Company as shown in the tables above.

A Reclassification from availuble-for-sale to FVPL

Investments in redeemsble units were teclassified from available-for-sale investments to financial asseis
mandatorily measured af fair value through profit or loss. In accordence with the requirements of IFRS 9,
investments in redeemable units are required to be measured at FVPL. Available-for-sale investments related fair
value reserve of SR 95,821 was transferred from fair value reserve 1o “Surplus distributeble to policyholders™ on
1 January 2017.

B Reclassification from available-for-sale 1o FVPL

Investments in redesmable units were reclassified from available-for-sale to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, investments in redeermable units are required to be
measured at FVPL. Available-for-sale investments related fair value reserve of SR 502,488 was transferred from
fair value reserve to “Retained earnings™ on 1 Janvary 217,

C Reclassification from available-for-sale to FVOCI

In accordance with [FRS 9, an investment in equity instrument that does not have a quoted price in an active
tarket for an identical instrument shall be measured at fair value, Accordingly, unlisted equity investments of the
Company for the amount of SR 1.9 million previously classified as available-for-sale investments were
reclassified to financial assets measured at FVOCI These investments in unlisted equity instruments are not held
for trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-term strategic purposes.

Iy Equity investments in listed shares previously classified as available-for-sale

The Company irrevocably elected to present changes in the fair value of alt its listed equity investments previously
classified as investment at FYPL in other comprehensive income. These investments in listed equity instruments
are not held for trading, Instead, they are held for medium to long-term strategic purposes.

E  Financial assests measured at amortised cost

At 1 January 2017, there were no instruments reclassified from amortised cost measurement to fair value

megsurement or vice versa, Previously classified held-to-maturity investments have been reclassified to “Financial
assets at amortised cost” category.
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017
5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}
5.1 Change in accounting policy (continued)

c} Reconcilintion of impairment allowance balance from 145 39 to IFRS 9

The following table reconciles the priot year’s closing impairment allowance measured in accordance with
previous IAS 39 incurred loss model to the new impairment allowance measured in accordance with the IFRS 9

expected credit loss model as at 1 January 2017,

JAS 39 IFRS 9
Impairment Reclassifi- Remeasure- Impairment
allowance cations ments allowance
Takaful operations SR’000 SR’000 SR'000 SR*000
Bank balances and cash - - 8I) (81
Held-to-maturity
investments/financial assets at
amortised gost - - {383) (585)
- - (666) (666)
FAS 39 1IFRS 9
Impairment Reclassifi- Remeasure- Impairment
allowance cations ments allowance
Shareholders’® operations SR000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Bank balances and cash - - (69 (65)
Held-to-maturity
investments/financial assets at
amortised cost - - {146) (146)
Statutory deposits - - {103 (t0)
- - (225) (225)

As aresult of adopting the requirements of IFRS 9 by the Company effective from [ Janvary 2017, the opening
balance of “surplus distributable to policyholders”™ has been adjusted by SR 0.66 million. The adjustment
represents the expected credit losses recognised on the financial assets of the Company which were subject to
expected credit losses on 31 December 2016. The fair value reserve of previously classified available-for-sale
investments has been reclassified to “surplus distributable to policyholders™ due to reclassification of available-
for-sale investments to investments measured at FVPL category from the date of initial application of the

requirements of IFRS 9.
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

52 Accounting pelicies on financial assets and liabilities adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements effective from 1 January 2017

5.2.1 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective profit rate

The amertised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initiat
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumudative amortisation using the effective
profit method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments ot receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
(i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) o to the amortised cost of a financial liability, The
calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs, contributions or discounts
and fees and points paid or received that are integral 1o the effective profit rate, such as origination fees.

Profit income

Profit income is recognised using the effective profit rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, profit income is recognised by applying the effective profit raie to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, profit income is
recognised by applying the effective profit rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective profit method
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On
the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance,

The company exercises judgment in determining whether the contractual terms of financial assets it originates
Or acquires give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and profit income on
the principal outstanding and so may qualify for amortised cost measurement. In making the assessment the
Company considers all contractugl terms, including any prepayment terms or provisions to extend the maturity
of the assets, terms that change the amount and timing of cash flows and whether the contractual terms contain
leverage,

5.2.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

From 1 January 2017, the Company has applied IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

a. Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);

b. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

¢. Amortised cost,

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

52 Accounting policies on financial assets and liabilities adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements effective from 1 January 2017 {(continued)

5.2.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
Debi instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s
perspective, such as loans, government and corporate Sukuks and contributions payable.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:
(1) the Company’s business model for managing the asset; and
(ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and profit, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured as deseribed in note 6.1.1 profit income from these financial assets is included
in ‘Special commission income’ using the effective profit method.

&  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCL); Financial assets that are held for collsction of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and profit, and that arz not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, special commission income and foreign exchange gains and
losses on the instrument’s amortised ¢ost which are recognised in the statement of income. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to statement of income, Profit income ftom these financial assets is included in “Special
commiission income’ using the effective profit rate method.

¢ Fait value through profit or loss (FVPL); Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI
are measured at fair value through profit or loss, A gain or loss on a debt invesiment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss preseoted in the statement of income in the peried in which it
arises. Profit income from these financial assets is included in *Special commission income”” using the
effective profit rate method.

Business madel:

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows, That is,
whether the Company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
bath the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable
{e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model
for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the
asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management petsonnsl, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated, For example, the liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held by
the Company gs part of liquidity management and is generally classified within the held to collect and sell
business model, Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpess of selling in the near term or
are part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual patiern of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the ‘othér’ business model
and measured at FVPL.
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8  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.2 Accounting policies on financial assets and Liabilities adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements effective from 1 January 2017 {continued)

5.2.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Solely payments of principal and profit:

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows
and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and profit. In malcing this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with the lending agreement i.e. profit includes only consideration for the time value of resources,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk ot volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the year.

Eguity nstruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issner’s perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net agsets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where
the Company’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably desipnate an equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company’s policy is to designate equity investments
as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns, When this
election is used, fair value pains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to the
statement of income, including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in the statement of income as ‘Dividend income® when the Company’s
right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the “Net gains on investments mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss’ line in the statement of income,

3.23 Impairment

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed to

an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39, The Company applics the expected credit losses (*ECL”) on its

debt instruments measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, which are in the scope of [IFRS 9 for impairment.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL

reflects:

# An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes,

= The time value of resources; and

# Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of futwe economic conditions,

Note 6.1.1 provides more detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd)

5.2 Accounting policies on financial assets and liabilities adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements effective from 1 January 2017 (continued)

5.2.4 Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the Company transfars
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially sll the risks and rewards of ocwnership and the Company has not retained control.

The Company enters into transactions whers it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers substantislly all of
the risks and rewards,

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration teceived and receivable is recognised in statement of income.

5.2.5 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial ligbilities
at fair value through profit or Joss: this classification is applied to financial liabilities designated as fair value
through profit or loss at initial recognition, Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is
determined as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the Liability). This is unless
such a presentation wonld create, or enlarge, an accounting mismateh, in which case the gains and losses
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented in the statement of income;

5.2.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the
coniract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

5.3 Other significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as
follows:

5.3.1 Takaful contracts

Takaful contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant takaful risk
from another party {the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company
defines significant tekaful risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.

Once a contract has been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract till its maturity, even if
the takaful risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expired.

5.3.2 Re-takaful
Re-takaful contracts are contracts entered into by the Company under which the Company is compensated for
losses on takaful contracts issued.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its re-talcaful contracts held are recognized as re-takaful
assets. These assets consist of the re-takaful share of settlement of claims and other receivables such as profit
commissions and the re-takaful share of outstanding claims that are dependent on the expected claims and
benefits arising under the related re-tekaful coniracts.
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.3 Other significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as
follows: (continued)

5.3.2 Re-takaful (continued)
Ameunts recoverable from or due to re-takaful companies are recognized consistently with the amountis
associated with the underlying takaful contracts and in accordance with the terms of each re-takaful contract.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a re-takaful asset may be
impaired by applying the expected credit losses (*ECL”) model to its re-takaful balances.

Where the carrying amount of a re-takaful asset exceeds its recoversble amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, Impairment is recognized in the statement of income
- takaful operations. On derecognition of a re-takaful asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of income — takaful
operations.

Gain or losses on buying re-takaful earned during the year are recognized in the statement of income ~ takaful
operations immediately at the date of purchase and unearned gains or losses on buying re-takaful are amortised
aver the related period,

Ceded re-takaful arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

5.3.3 Claims

Claims consist of amounts payable to pelicyholders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net
of salvage and other recoveries and are charged to statement of income - takaful operstions in the period in
which they are incurred.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of ¢laims incurred but not settled at the statement
of financial position date, together with related claim handling cost whether reported by the insured or not.
Provisions for reported claims not paid as at the reporting date, are made on the basis of individual case
estimates. In addition, a provision based on management’s judgment and the Company’s priot expericnce is
maintained for the cost of settling claims Incurred But Not Reported (“IBNR™} at the reporting date. The
ultimate Hability may be in excess of or less than the amount provided,

Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements and provisions in the following
year is charged to statement of income - takaful operations,

The Company does not discount its tiabilities for unpaid claims, as substantially all claims are expected to be
paid within ane year of the reporting date,

Re-takaful claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the term
of the relevant contract.

5.3.4 Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some takaful contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for
example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs (for example, subrogation),

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims
lishility. The allowance {s the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset,

Subrogation reimbursements are alse considered as an alloweance in the measurement of the outstanding claims
lisbility. The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party,
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (continued)

5.3 Other significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as
follows: (continued)

3.3.5 Deferred policy acquisition costs (DPAC)
Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of takaful contracts are deferred
and amortised over the terms of the contract to which they relate, similar to contributions earned.

All the acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Amortisation is recorded in the “policy
acquisition cost™ in the statement of income — takafil operations.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more freguently when an indication of impeirment
arises. [f'the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realised, the amortisation of
these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment charge in the statement of
income - takaful operations. DPAC is also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

3.3.6 Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, a liability adequacy test is performed to ensure the aﬂequacy of the takaful contract
liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs, using current estimates of future cash flows under
takaful contracts. In performing these tests, curtent best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and administration expenses are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the statement of
income - takaful operations initially by writing off related deferred policy acquisition costs and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests under contribution deficiency reserves.

5.3.7 Property and equipment

Property and equipment is measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Expenditure for repair and
maintenance is charged to the statement of incorne - shareholders’ operations, lmprovements that increase the
value or materially extend the life of the related assets are capitalised. Depreciation is charged to the statement
of income — shareholders® operations on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
estimated useful lives of the assets are:

Years
Office and electrical equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 6-7
Motor vehicles 3
Compuier hardware and software 3-5

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ikem of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in statement of income of
shargholders’ operations.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognised tpon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any pain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of income — shareholders’ operations when the asset is
derecognised.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable
amount.

The residval values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, equipment are reviewed ai each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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3. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Other significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as
follows: (continued)

5.3.8 Income recognition

Contributions and commissions are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a
pro-raa basis. The portion of contributions and commissions that will be eamed in the future is reported as
ungarned contributions and commissions, respectively, and is differed based on the following methods:

Last three months from the period in respect of marine cargo.

Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond a single year.
In accordance with this ealeulation, lower contributionss are earned in the first year which gradually increases
towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

Actual number of days for other Lines of business,

The underwriting surplus represents contributions earned less claims paid, other underwriting expenses and
anticipated claims payable in respect of the year, net of amounts reinsured, less provision for any anticipated
future losses on continuing policies,

3.3.9 Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income represents management fees charged to clients for policy documentation and
claim management charges that are tecovered from policyholders.

5.3.10 Re-takaful commission income

Re-takaful commissions are deferred and amortised on a siraight-line basis over the term of the takaful
contracts. Re-takafitl profit commission is recognised as the basis of terms agreed with reinsurers which include
claim or loss ratios on policies ceded.

5.3.11 Contribution receivables

Contribution receivables are recognised when due and ere measured on initial recognition at the Fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any
indication that a contribution receivable asset may be impaired by applying the expected credit losses (*ECL?)
model. Any resulting impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income - takaful operations. Cn
derecognition of a contribution receivable asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of income — takaful operations.

3.3.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank and murabaha depasits with an original maturity
of three months or less from the acquisition date,

5.3.13 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the functional
cumrency raie of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in & foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction
and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined, All foreign exchange
differences are taken to the statement of income - takafurl operations, except when they relate to items where
gains or losses are recognized directly in compeehensive income and the gain or loss is recognised net of the
exchange component in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.3 Other significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as
follows: (continued)

5.3.14 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to scttle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expense is not offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

5.3.15 Management fee for administration of takaful operations and attributable to shareholders

operations

The Company’s by-laws require separate books to be maintained for Takaful and Shareholders’ operations, As

per the Company's policy, all general and administrative expenses of Takaful operations are charged to

Sharsholders’ operations, The Company in accordance with the Islamic sharia provisions of managing the co-

operative insurance operations calcotates the management fees in the below manner and pays it in full shortly

afier the end of the fiscal year,

» The first component of the management fee is calculated based on the net contributions written for the
year afier adjusting commission income and cost of production for moter and general at 40% and for health
at 30% and is limited to the extent of general and administrative expenses charged in the statement of
income — shareholders’ operations; and

¢ The other component of the management fee is determined up to 90% of the net surplus if any for the year
from takaful operations remaining after computing the first component of management fee. The Company
is required to distribute the remaining 10% of the net surplus ftom Takaful operations to policyholders in
accordance with the Insyrance Law and Implementation Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian
Monetary Agency (“SAMA™).

5.4 Zakat and income iax

As aresult of the Circular issued by SAMA, the Company amended its accounting policy relating to zakat and
income tax and have started to charge zakat and income tax directly to the statement of changes in shareholders’
equity. Previously, zakat and income tax was charged in the statement of income — shareholders' operations.
The Company has accounted for this change in accounting policy relating to zakat and income tax
retrospectively.

The change in the accounting pelicy has the following impacts on the statements of income and comprehensive
income — shareholders’ operations and changes in shareholders’ equity, The above change in accounting policy
did not have an impact on statements of financial position and cash flows for any of the year presented.

Statement of income — Shareholders® operations for the vear ended 31 December 2016:

As
previously Effect of Ag
stated restatement restated
SR100 SR’000 SR*000
Income from operations before zakat charge 99,027 - 99.027
Zakat charge {10,400} 10,400 -
Income from operations 88,627 10,400 99.027

Statement of comprehensive income — Shareholders' operations for the year ended 31 December 2016:

As
previously Effect of AS S
stated restatement restated
SR’000 SR'000 SR’000
Income from operations 88.627 10,400 99,027
Other comprehensive ncome 241 - 241
Total Comprehensive income for the vear 88,868 16,400 99,268
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.4 Zakat and income tax (continued)

Statement of changes in Shareholders® equity for the year ended 31 December 2016:

As
previously Effect of Ass
stated  restatement restated
SR'000 SR*000 SR’ 000
Income from operations 88,627 10,400 99,027
Zakat charge - (10,400) (10,4000

The basic and diluted earnings per share have been restated as at 31 December 2016 for the effects of the above
change in accounting policy as follows:

EPS as Effect of EPS as

previously restatement  restated at

reported at  relating to 31 Dec

31 Dec 2016 zakat 2016

Basic and diluted earnings per share 222 0.26 248

Further we bave added the word restated in the comparative information for statement of income and
comprehensive income.

3.3 Segmental reporting

A segment i3 a distinguishable component of the Corpany that is engaged in providing products or services
(2 business segment}, which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For
management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their produets and services and
has four reportable segments as follows:

General

Motor

Health

Protection and savings

Operating segmenits do not include shareholders operations of the Company. Income earned from investments
is the only revenue generating activity in shareholders operations. Certain direct operating expenses and other
overhead expenses are allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis. The surplus ot loss from Takaful
operations is allocated to this segment in accordance with note 5.3.15.

Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the internal reporting to the chief executive
officer. The chief executive officer is the key decision maker and is responsible for allocating resources,
assessing performance and making steategic decisions of the cperating segments, No inter-segment transactions
occurred during the period.

5.6 Seasonality of operations
There are no seasonal changes that may affect insurance operations of the Company.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The following section discusses the Company”s updated credit risk measurement under ECL model in order to
comply with the requirements of IFRS 9, The other risk management policies are consistent with thoss
followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the vear ended December 31,
2016,

6.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum
credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

6.1.1 Credit risk measurement
IFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stape’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition
as summarised below:

a. A financial instrument that is not eredit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1° and has
its credit risk continuously monitored by the Company,

b, [fa significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to *Stage 2° but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

¢. Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to “Stage 3°,

d. Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifelime
expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in
Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis,

&. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward
looking information.

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Company in addressing the requirements of [FRS 9 are
discussed below: '

Significant increase in eredit visk
The Company censiders a financial instrument to have experienced a significant incresse in eredit risk when
one or more of the following quantitative and qualitative criteria have been met,

Quantitative criteria:
' Downward movement in the external credit rating by two notches;
* Downward movement in the external credit rating by one notch if the revised external credit rating
becomes below “investment grade”;
v Coniractual payments are more than 7 days past due;

Qualitative criteria:

* An actuzal or expecled significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the countetparty that results in a significant decrease in the counterparty’s ability to meet
its obligations to the Company;

v A group company of the counterparty has defaulted and in the Company's opinion repayment capacity of
the counterparty would also be significantly impacted.

Definition of defauit and credit-impaired asseils
The Company defines a financial instruments as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-
impaired, when it meets one or more of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria;
* Confractual payments are more than 90 days past dus;

v Counterparty’s refusal to pay the amounts due.

Qualitative criteria:
v Information about the bankruptcy of the counterparty;
" Legal case on recovery proceedings;,
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.1 Credit risk (continued)

6.1.1 Credit risk measurement (continued)

The criteria above have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Company and are consistent with
the definition of default used for internal risk management purposes. An instrument is considered to no longer
be in default {i.e. to have cured) when it no longer meets any of the default criteria for a consecutive period of
six month, This period of six months has been determined based on an analysis which considers the likeliheod
of a financial instrument returning to default status after cure using different possible cure definitions.

Based on the detailed analysis of the Companies exposures to the credit risk, the management of the Company
have opted to benefit from the practical expedient in calculating the expected credit losses provided by IFRS
& for financial assets with low credit risk. The management of the Company measures impairment nsing 12-
month expected credit losses for its financial assets subject to impairment. The low credit risk financial assets
of the Company meet the following requirements of IFRS 9 to measure impairment using 12-month expected
credit losses:

= Low credit risk of default;

= The counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their obligations in the near term;
» Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the counterparties to fulfil their contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company uses external credit risk ratings of well-known and reputable rating agencies to assess the
probability of default of individual counterparties

The Company does not recognise lifetime expected credit losses on a financial instrument simply because it
was considered to have low credit risk in the previous reporting period and is not considered to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. In such # case, the Company will determine whether there has been & significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and thus whether lifetime expected credit losses are required to
be recognised.

Measuring expected credit losses

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either & 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk hes occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure
at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD), defined as follows:

* The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the next
12 months (12-month PD), or over the remaining lifetime {Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

* EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

* Loss Given Default {(LGD) represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD
is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LG} is the percentage of loss expected to
be made if the default oceurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected
to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected Lifetime of the exposure.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for ¢ach individual
exposure. These three compotents are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival {i.e. the
exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future
month, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective profit rate.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity profile
looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initiat recognition thronghout the lifetime of the
exposutes. The maturity profile is based on historical ohserved data and is assumed to be the same across all
assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis,
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.1 Credit risk {continued)
6.1.1 Credit risk measurement (continued)
a) Maximum exposure o credif visk — financial instruments subject to ECL
The following tables contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financigl instruments for which an ECL

allowance is recognised. The gross carrving amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost below also
represents the Compatry’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets,

i} TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
31 December 2017
31 Decemnber 2016
Financial statement line item Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total Total
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
SR'000 SR'000 SR*000 SR 000 SR’000
Bank balances and cash 579,457 - - 579,457 388,772
Held-to-maturity
investmenis/financial
assets at ameortised cost 1,285,004 - - 1,285,000 705,000
Due from shargholders’
operaﬁons 204,322 . . 204,322 196,822
Gross carrying amount 2,068,779 - - 2,068,779 1,290,594
Loss allowance (1,082) - - {1,082y -
Carrying amennt 2,067,697 - - 2,067 697 1,290,594
31 December 2017 31 Deceg‘g}fé
Credit grade Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
SR'00 SR'000 SR’000 SR°000 SR*000
Tnvestment grade 1,864,457 - . 1,864,457 1,093,772
Standard monitoring 204,322 - . 204,322 196,822
Special monitoring _ - - - -
Default _ - _ _ -
Gross carrying amoun¢ 2,068,779 - - 2,068,779 1,290,594
Loss allowence {1,082) - - {1,082} -
Carrying amount 2067697 - - 2,067,697 1,290,594
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.1 Credit risk (continued)
6.1.1 Credit risk measurement (continued)
a) Maximum exposure to credit risk - financial instruments subject to ECL {continued)

ii) SHAREHOLDERS’ OPERATIONS
31 December 2017

31 December

2016
Financial statement line itewm Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total

12-month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL
SR’000 SR*000 SR'000 SR’ 00 SR’000
Bank balances and cash 251,227 - - 251,227 85,248

Held-to-maturity
investments/financial assets at

amottised cost 85,074 - - 85,074 180,000
Statutory deposits 40,000 - - 40,000 40,000
Gross carrying amount 376,301 - - 376,301 305,248
Loss aliowance (158) - - {138) -
Carrying amount 376,143 - - 376,143 305,248
31 December 2017 31 December
Credit grade 2016
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Tatal

12-month Lifetime Lfetime

ECL ECL ECL
SR*000 SR'000 SR"000 SR’IN0 SR’000
Investment grade 376,301 - - 376,301 303,248
Standard monitoring - - - - -
Special monitoring - - - - -
Default - - - - -
Gross carrying amount 376,301 - - 376,301 305,248
Loss allowance {158) - - {158) -
Carrying amount 376,143 - - 376,143 305,248

The Company’s exposures 1o credit risk are not collateralised.

b) Loss allowance

The loss allowance recognised in the period may be impected by a variety of factors, as described below:

& Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases
(or decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the peried, and the consequent “step up” (or

“step down”™) between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

®  Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for

financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

¢ Impact on the measurement ef ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the pericd, arising from

regular refreshing of inputs to models;

¢ Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;
*  Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

¢ Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were
written off during the period. The following tables explein the change in the loss allowance between the

beginning and the end of the annual period due to these factors,
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

6.1 Credit risk {continued)

6.].1 Credit risk measurement (continued)

b) Lass allowance (continued)

i) TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
Stage [ Stage 2 Btage 3
12-month  Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
SR’000 SR'000 SR'0G0 SR’00)
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2017 566 - . 666
Movements with the statement of income impact
Transfers:
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2 - - - -
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 - . - -
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 1 . - - -
New financial assets originated or purchased 2,992 - - 2,992
Net remeasurement of loss allowance . - - -
Financial assets derecognised during the period (2.576) . . (2,576)
Write-offs - - - -
Total loss allowance for the year 416 . - 416
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2017 1,082 - - 1,082
ii) SHAREHOLDERS’ OPERATIONS
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month  Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
SKR’009 SR*000 SR000 SR*000
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2017 75 - - 225
Movements with the statement of income impact
Transfers:
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2 - - - -
Transfer from stage 1 1o stage 3 w . - -
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 1 - . - -
New financial assets originated or purchased 046 . - 946
Net remeasursment of loss allowance ) . - 22
Financial assets derecognised during the year (1,035) . - (1,035)
Write-offs - . - -
Total reversal of loss allowance for the period (67) . - (67)
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2017 158 - - 158
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls
which uses the existing organisational structure to meet strategic targets. The Companys philosophy
revolves on willing and knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and a
strategic plan approved by the Board. The Company is exposed ta takaful, re-takaful, commission rate,
credit, liquidity and currency risks,

6.3 Risk management structure
A cohesive organizational siructure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess,
monitor and control risks,

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralised oversight of the Board of Directors providing direction
and the necessary approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals,

Senior management
Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day operations towards achigving the strategic goals
within the Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarised
below:

a)Takaful risk

The risk undet a takaful contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of
the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such
contracts is that the actual clairas and benefit payments exceed the carrving amount of takaful liabilities.
This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than
originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of takaful
confracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely 1o be affected across the board by change in any
subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting stratepy and guidelines as well as the use of re-
takaful arrangements.

A significant portion of re-takaful business ceded is placed on 2 quota share basis with retention limits
varying by product lines. Amounts recoverable from te-takaful are estimated in a manner consistent
with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the
financial position as re-takaful assets,

Although the Company has re-takaful arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to re-takaful ceded, to the exient that any
re-takaful is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such re-tekaful acrangements.

The takaful ¢laim liabilities are sensitive te the various assumptions mentioned in note 6,3 (a). It has
not been pessible to quantify the sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or
uncertainty in the estimation process.

A key feature of the liability adequacy testing is that the effects of changes in the assumptions on the
measurement of the liabilities and related assets are not symmetrical.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors, The Company underwrites
mainly property and fire and accident, motor, medical and marine risks, These are regarded as short-
term takaful contracts as claims are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured event
taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.
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6.3 Risk management structure (continued)
a) Takaful risk (continued)

Property and Aeccident
For property takaful contracts the main risks are fire and business interruption. In recent years the
Company has only underwritten policies for properties containing fire detection equipment,

These contracts are underwritten by referenge to the replacement value of the properties and contents
insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the time taken to
restart operations which leads to business intetruptions are the main factors that influence the level of
claims. The Company has reinsurance cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual claim to
SR 300 thousand (2016: SR 500 thousand).

Motor

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repait
of vehicles. In recent years the Company has only underwritten comprehensive polices for
owner/drivers over 21 years of age. Substantially all of'the motor contracts relate to private individuals.

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles
are key factors that influence the level of claims. The Company alse has risk management procedurss
to control cost of claims. The Company has re-takaful cover for such damage to limit the losses for any
individual claim to SR 750 thousand (2016 SR 750 thousand).

Medical

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of
type of risks and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across
industry sectors and geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes
account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular view of actual claims
experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. The Company further
enforces a policy of actively managing and promgptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure
to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company,

Marine
For marine cargo takaful, the main risks are loss or damage to marine crafi and accidents resulting in
the total or partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine cargo class of business is to ensure that policies are well
diversified in terms of cargo, vessels and shipping routes covered. The Company has re~takaful cover
to limit losses for any individual claim to SR 500 thousand (2016: SR 500 thousand).

Sensitivity analysis
The takaful claims provisien is sensitive to the above key assumptions. A hypothetical 5% change in
the claim ratio would impact income by approximately SR 117 million (2016: SR 77 million) annually

in aggregate,

b) Re-takaful risk

In order to minimize its financial exposure to potential losses arising from farge claims, the Company
entets into agreements with other parties for re-takaful purposes. Such re-takaful arrangements provide
for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses arising
from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. Motor policies are protected by an excess
of loss treaty, Health policies have been reinsured on a quota share basis. Marine, engineering and other
lines of business have been insured on a quota share, surplus and facultative basis.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from re-takaful insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers and menitors the concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities and economic characteristics of re-takaful.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 Risk management structure (continued)

b} Re-takaful risk {continued)

Re-takaful ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to the policyholders and as
a result, the Company remains liable for outstanding claims re-takaful to the extent that the re-takaful
fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements. The credit exposure in respect of re-
takaful share of outstanding claims is mainly concentrated in the Gulf Co-operative Council countries
(the “GCC’} and Europe.

¢) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due te changes in foreign
exchangs rates.

Managemernit believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses dus to exchange rate fluctuation as
the majority of monetary assets and liabilities are in cutrencies linked to the Saudi Riyal. In addition,
Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dollars which is pegged with Saudi Rival
and therefore the financial instruments are not sensitive to currency fluctuations.

d} Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affect future
profitability or the fair values of financial instruments. The Company has no significant concentration
of commission rate risk,

The sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed changes in the commission rates, with ali
other variable held constant, on the Company’s inceme for one year. Based on the floating rete financial
assets held at 31 December 2017, an increase or decrease of 50 basis points in commission rates would
result in & change in the loss or gain for the year of SR 850 thousand (2016; SR 250 thonsand)

e} Equity price risk .

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices {other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has investment in the units of commeodity fund managed by a related party. A 5% change
in the net asset value of funds, with all other variables held constant, would impact the sharsholders'
equity by increase / decrease of SR 1,624 thousand (2016; SR 4,219 thousand) and fair value reserve
on investments under takaful operations by increase / decrease by SR 6,241 thousand (2016: SR 735
thousand}.

The Company has investment in the Saudi companies equities listed on Tadawul. A 5% change in the
tnarket value of these investments, with all other variables held constant, would impact the shareholders’
equity by increase / decrease of SR 3,937 thousand (2016: SR 4,102 thousand).
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6.3 Risk management structure {continued)

f) Credit risk
The analysis of the credit ratings of the investment portfolic (IFRS 9) is as follows:
Ji-Dec-2017
Takaful  Sharcholders'
operations aperutions
SReea SR'000
5 & P equivalent (A) 199,946 -
S & P equivalent (A-) 24,993 -
S & P equivalent (BBB+) 959,236 85,016
S & P equivalent (BB) 99,919 -
1,284,094 85.016
31-Dec-2016
Takafil  Shareholders’
aperations aperations
SRGOD SR'000
S & P equivalent {A) 25,000 -
S & P equivalent (BBB+) 680,000 180,000
705,000 180,000

g} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wilt encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with its financial instruments, There is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing difference between
gross cash out-flows and expected se-takaful recoveries,

Liquidity requirements are menitored on a monthly basis and management ensutes that sufficient liquid
funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitipate the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk:

s A Company liquidity risk pelicy setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
liquidity risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and
breaches are reported to the Risk Committee, The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

+ Set guidelines on asset allocations, portfolie limit structures and maturiey profiles of assets, in
order to ensure sufficient funding available to meet takaful obligations,

s Setling up contingency funding plans which specify minimum proportions of funds to meet
emergency calls as well as specifying events that would trigger such plans.

The Company’s catastrophic excess-of-loss re-takafual contracts contain clanses permitting the immediate
draw down of funds to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain size.

Matarity profiles
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the non-derivative financial assets and liabilities of
the Company based on remaining expected obligations. For takaful contract liabilities and re-takaful
assets, maturity profiles are determined based on the estimated timing of net cash outflows from the
recognised takaful liabilities, Repayments that are subject to notice are treated as if notice were (o be
given immediately.
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6.3 Risk management structure {continued)

g.) Liguidity risk (continued)

Maturity profiles {continued)

ASSETS

Bank balance and cash
Contributions receivable, net
Re-takaful balances reccivable,
net

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised
cost

Re-takaful share of outstanding
claims

Due from shareholders®
operations

Advances and other assets
Manapement fee receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

Bank balance and cash
Contributions receivable, net
Re-takaful balances receivable
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available for sale financials
assets

Due from shareholders®
operations

Financial assets at amortised
cost

Re-takaful share of outstanding
claims

Advances and other assets
Management fee receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

31 December 2017
Takaful operations Shareholders’ aperations
Current  Noen-current Total Carrent Non-current Total
SR’600 SR000 SR’000 SR060 SR'000 SR*000
579,282 - 579,282 251,159 - 251,159
225,11 32,552 258,263 - - -
5,022 - 5,022 - - -
124,829 - 124,829 32,481 - 32,481
199,946 1,084,148 1,284,094 - 85,016 85,016
142,473 - 142,473 - - -
7,500 196,822 204,322 - - -
6,004 - 6,094 5269 - 5,269
- - 343,709 - 343,709
1,290,857 1,313,522 2,604,379 632,618 85,016 717,634
31 December 2016 ———
Takafil operations Shareholders ' operations
Cirrent  Non-current Total Current Non-cyrrent Total
SR'000 SR 600 SR'060 SR'000 SRO00 SR06G0
388,772 - 388,772 85,248 - 85,248
302,641 - 302,641 - - -
8,161 - 8,161 - - -
13,101 X 13,101 82,047 - 82,047
15,096 - 15,056 86,303 - 86,303
- 196,822 196,822 - - -
705,000 - 705,000 180,000 - 180,000
935,709 - 85,709 - - -
4,723 4,723 3,437 - 3,437
- - - 169,553 - 169,553
1,533,203 196,822 1,730,025 606,588 - 606,588
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6.3 Risk management structure {(continued)

g.) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity profiles (continued)

B E— 31 December 201 7————— e
Takafi! operations Shareholders’ operations
Neon- Non-
Current  Current Total Current curremnt Total
SR°000 SR°000 SR'000 SR’000 SR'066 SR'0O00
LIABILITIES
Gross outstanding claims 893,230 - 593,230 - - -
Payables, acoruals and other
liabilities 80,497 - 80,497 31,777 - A7
Management fee payable 343,709 - 343,709 - - -
Re-takaful balances payable 66,315 - 66,318 - - -
Due (o takaful operations - - - 7,300 196,822 104,322
Financial liabilitics at fair
vahie through profit or loss - 30,595 30,595 - - -
TOTAL LIARILITIES 1,383,754 30,595 1,414,349 39,277 196,822 236,099
e emeeeeee- 3] December 2016 --—mm—ememem e
Takaful operaiions Shareholders ' operations
Non-
Current  Non-current Toial Current current Toial
SR'000 SR000 SR'000 SR 000 SR'000  SR'000
1IABILITIES
Gross outstanding claims 542,610 - 542,610 - - -
Payables, accruals and other
liabilities 51,891 - 55391 21,133 - 21,133
Management fee payable 169,553 - 169,553 - - -
Re-takaful balances payable 50,679 - 50,679 - - -
Due to takaful operations - - - - 196,822 196,522
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss - 14,196 14,196 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 814,733 14,196 828,929 21,133 196,822 217,955

Liquidity profile

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company
based on remaining contractual obligations, including contribution receivable. For takaful contract liabilities
and assets, maturity profiles are determined based on the estimated timing of net cash outflows from the
recognized takaful liabilities. Unearned coniributions, re-takaful share of unearned contributions, deferred
policy acquisition costs and unearned re-takaful commission income have been excluded from the analysis as
they are not contractual obligations. Repayments that are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be
given immediately and such amounts are classified as due within ong year,
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6.3 Risk management structure (continued)

g.) Liguidity risk (continued}
Liquidity profiles (continued

31 December 2017
Amaunt in SR°000

Takaful operations® assets

Bank balances and cash
Contributions receivable, net
Re-takafiil balances receivable
Financial assats at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost
Advances and prepayments
Re-takaful share of outstanding claims
Re-takaful share of mathematical
Feserve

Due from shareholders' operations

Shareholders’ operations’ assets
Bark balances and cash

Financial asseis at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amottised cost
Management fees receivable — from
takaful operaiions

Advances and prepayments
Statutory deposits

Accrued income — statutary deposits

On Upta i Mare than 5 Total
Demand year 2-5 pears Jyears

579,282 - - - 579,282
- 258,263 - - 258,263
- 4,985 37 5,022
56,376 - - 68,453 124,829
1,234,108 - - 49,986 1,284,094
- 6,094 - - 6,094
- 142,473 - - 142,473
- - - 114 114
204,322 - - - 204,322
2,074,088 411,813 37 118,553 2,604,493
251,159 - - - 251,159
32,481 - - - 32,481
- - - 84,766 84,766
64,942 - - 20,074 83,016
343,709 - - - 343,709
- 5,269 - - 5,269
39,568 - - - 39,268
2,565 - - - 2,563

734,324 5,269 - 104,840 844,933
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6.3 Risk management structure (continued}

g.) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity profiles (continued

31 December 2016 On Upia! More than 5 Total
Amount inn SR 000 Demand yegr 2-5 years years
Takaful operations’ assets
Bank balances and cash 388,772 - - - 388772
Contributions receivable, net - 302,641 - - 302.641
Re-takaful batances receivable - 7,580 581 8,161
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 13,101 - - - 13,101
Available-for-sale financial assets 15,096 - - - 15,096
Held-to-maturity investments 655,000 - - 50,000 705,000
Advances and prepayments - 4,723 - - 4,723
Re-takaful share of outstanding claims - 95,709 - - 95,709
Re-takaful share of mathematical
reserve ) ) - 58 58
Due from sharcholders' operations 196,822 - - - 196,822
1,268,791 410,653 381 50,038 1,730,083
Sharcholders® operations® asscrs
Bank balances and cash 85,248 - - - 85,248
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 82,047 - - - 82,047
Available-for-sale financial assets 36,303 - - 86,303
Held-to-meturity investments 180,000 - - - 180,000
Management fees receivable — from
takaful operations 169,553 - - - 169,553
Advances and prepayments - 3,437 - - 3,437
Statutory deposits 40,000 - - - 40,000
Accrued income — statutory deposits 1,655 - - - 1,655
644,806 3,437 - n 648,243
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6.3 Risk management structure (continued)
g.) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liguidity profiles (continued)

31 December 2017 On Upinl More than § Total

Amount in SR'000 Demand year 2.5 years years

Takaful operations® liabilities

Gross outstanding claims - 893,230 - - 893,230

Payables, accruals and other liabilities - 80,497 - - 80,497

Management fee payable - 343,709 - - 343,709

Re-takaful balances payable - 66,318 - - 66,318

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 30,595 - - - 30,595
30,395 1,383,754 - - 1,414,349

Sharcholders® operations liabilities

Payables to SAMA 3473 - - 3473

Payables. accruals and other liabilities - 31,777 - - 31,777

Due to takaful operations - 204,322 - - 204,322
3,473 236,099 - - 239,572

31 December 2016 On Uptol More than 5 Total

Amount in SR '000 Demand year 2-5 years years

Takaful operations® liabilities

Gross outstanding claims - 542,610 - - 542,610

Payabhles, accruals and other liabilities - 51,891 - " 51,891

Management fee payable - 169,533 - - 169,553

Re-takaful balances payable - 50,679 - - 50,679

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 14,196 - - 14,196
14,196 814,733 - - 828,929

Shareholders’ operations liabilities

Payables to SAMA 2,564 - - 2,564

Payables, accruals and other liabilities - 21,133 - - 21,133

Due to takaful operations - 196,822 - - 196,822

2,364 217,953 - - 220,519
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7

6.3 Risk management structure (continued)

h) Capital management

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain stable capital ratios in order to suppert its business objectives
and maximise sharcholders’ vahue.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital
levels on & regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in markst conditions
and risk characteristics of the Company™s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares.

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it is
incorporated. Such regulations not only preseribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose cettain
restrictive provisions e.g. capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the
insurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

The Company maintains its capital as per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 table 3 and 4 of the
Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvency margin required to be maintained. According to
the said Article, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three
methods as per SAMA Implementing Regulations:

Minimum Capital Requirement of SR 200 million
Premium Solvency Margin
Claims Solvency Margin

The Company has fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported
finaneial year,

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
31-Dec-2617 31-Dec-2016
Takaful Shareholders’ Takafid Shareholdevs’
aperntions operations operations operations
{SR’60%) (SR006) {SR'000) {SR'000)
Cash in hand and at banks 316,460 319 226,925 {660)
Murabaha deposits (7.1} 230,000 250,000 150,000 85,000
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of cash flows 566,460 250,319 376,925 84,340
Less: Impairment loss {175) (68) - -
Cash and cash equivalents, net 566,285 250,251 376,925 84,340
Deposits against letters of guaraniee (7.2) 12,997 - 11,847 -
Cash at banks {(statutory deposit
income)} (7.3) - 908 - 908
279,282 251,159 388,772 85,248
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7 BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

7.1 Murabaha deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company. The average variable commission rate on Murabgha deposiis
at 31 December 2017 is 3.30% per annum (2016: 3.14% per annum). Bank balances and Murabaha deposiis
are placed with counterparties with investment grade credit ratings, &s rated by international rating agencies.

The carrying values of Murabaha deposits and bank balances approximate theit fair value at the reporiing
date.

7.2Deposits against letters of guarantee comprises amounts placed with a local bank against issuance of
payment guarantees in favour of the Company’s service providers {note 20 (a)}. As these cannot be
withdrawn before the end of the guarantee period, these are restricted in nature.

7.3 Cash at banks (statutory deposit income} iz the realised amount from the statutory deposits relating to the
previous years, The amount cannot be withdrawn without the prior approval of SAMA.

§ CONTRIBUTIONS AND RE-TAKAFUL BALANCES RECEIVABLE, NET
Summary of contributions and re-takaful balances receivable is shown below,

31- Dec-2017  31-Dec-2016

SR’000 SR'000

Due from policyholders
- External policyholders 152,207 99,868
« Related parties frote 23 (a)} 143,801 235,942
Gross contributions receivable 296,008 3353810
Re-takaful balances receivable 5,763 8,161
301,771 343,971
Allowance for doubtful receivables and re-takaful receivables (hote 8.1) (38,486) (33,169)
263,285 310,802

Allowance for doubtful receivables includes provision of SR 2,391 thousands (2016: SR 3,101 thousands}
against receivables from related parties.

8.1 The loss allowance provision for receivables and re-takaful receivables as at 31 December 2017 reconeiles to
the opening loss allowance and the movement for that provision is as follows:

31- Dec-2617  31-Dec-2016

SR’000 SR'000
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 33,169 28,332
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 5317 4,837
Bad debts written off during the year - -
Recoveries / reversals of amounts previously provided - -
Balance loss allowance as at 31 December 38,486 33,169

During the year, the Company made no write-ofts of contributions receivables and re-takaful receivables, it does

not expect to receive future cash flows from and ne recoveries from eollection of cash flows previously written
off.
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& CONTRIBUTIONS AND RE-TAKAFUL BALANCES RECEIVABLE, NET (continued)

8.1 The loss allowance provision for receivables and re-takafil receivables as at 31 December 2017 reconciles to
the opening loss allowance and the movement for that provision is as follows: {continued)

As at 31 December, the ageing of contributions receivable balances and re-takaful halances recsivables are as
follows:

Past due but not impaired Past due and impaired
18I to
Less 6f to 9 to Above
Tot NV ppanzp IO 90 180 i 365
days v days days 4 days
SR'000
Asat 31 301,771 39,584 104583 35945 60324 10744 18039 32552
December 2017 ’ ; e ) 3 ’ . 4
Asat3l
December 2016 343,971 32,401 97,602 120,127 37,411 16,037 6,142 34,251

The Company classifies balances as ‘past due and impaired’ on a case by case basis. An impairment adjustment
is recorded in the statement of income - takaful operations. It is not the practice of the Company to obtain
collateral over receivables and these are therefore, unsecured. The Company does not have an internal credit
ratings assessment process, Amounts which are neither past due nor impaired, in respect of pelicyholders’
balances, are from individuals and unrated corporates.

Contributicns and re-takaful balances receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as well as reinsurance companies mainly in Middle east, contributions and re-takaful
balances receivable include SR 1,250 thousand (2016: SR 1,450 thousand) due in foreign currencies, mainly in
US Dollars. The Company’s terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of
transaction. Atrangements with reinsurers normally require setilement if the balance exceeds a certain agreed
amount, The five largest customers accounts for 56% (2016: 69%) of the contributions receivable as at 31
December 2017, Further, total receivable from government entities amount to SR 21 million (2016: nil )
constituting 7% (2016 nil) of total contribution receivable.
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9 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Cost:

Balance at 1 January 2016
Additions during the vear
Disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2016

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2017

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 January 2016
Charge for the year {note 21)
Disposals during the year
Balance st 31 December
2016

Charge for the year (note 21)
Disposals duting the year
Balance at 31 December
2017

Net book value as at
31 December 2017

31 December 2016

10 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Office and
electrical ~ Furniture Moror Computer  Computer
equipment  and fixtures vehicles hardware saftware Total
SR'a66 SR'000 SR'00¢ SR'000 SR000 SR’000
2.641 17.503 1,273 8.194 26,351 55,962
257 990 446 712 2,764 5,169
27} . - (127) - (154)
2,871 18,493 1,719 8,779 29,115 60,977
631 2,368 - 2291 1,678 6,968
3,502 20,861 1,719 11,070 30,793 67,945
1,965 11,529 682 6,509 11,262 31,947
303 2,522 257 798 5,299 9,179
()] - - (127) - {154)
2,241 14,051 9239 1,180 16,561 40,972
307 1,896 265 867 4,702 8,037
2,548 15,947 1,204 8,047 21,263 49,009
954 4,014 315 3,023 9,530 18,936
630 4,442 780 1,559 12,554 20,005

Statutory deposit amounting to SR 40 miltion (2016: SR 40 million) represents 10% of the paid up share capital
of the Company which is maintained in accordance with the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law
issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (“SAMA™), This statutory deposit canmot be withdrawn without
the consent of SAMA. Under ECL method the Company charged an impairment loss amounting te SR 32

thousand. (2016: nil)
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11 INVESTMENTS
) TARAFUL OPERATIONS

a) Financial assets measured af amortised cosi

Investments in Mutabaha deposits and Sukuks are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Company’s business model for these investments is to hold to collect the contractual sash flows. The cash flows
of Murabaha deposits and Sukuks represent solely payments of principal and profit an the principal outstanding.

The investments amounting to SR 1,284 million (2016: SR 705 million) comprise Murabaha deposits and
investment in Sukuks with original maturities of more than three months. The fair value of these investments are
not materially different from their carrying values.

The movement during the year is set out below:

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR’000 SR000
At the beginning of the year;
Murabaha deposits 655,000 280,000
Sukuk 50,000 30,000
Purchased during the year 1,535,000 1,180,000
Maturities during the year (955,000) (805,000)
Atthe end of the vear, gross 1,285,000 705,000
Less: Impairment loss (906) -
At the end of the vear, net 1,284,004 705,000
b Financiol assets mandatorily measured ot FVPL
The movement during the year is set out below;
31-Dee-17 31-Dec-16
SR 000 SR’000
Al the beginning of the year 13,101 4,978
Reclassification of investment from AFS to FVPL 15,096 -
Purchased during the year 2,392,671 7,695
Sold during the vear {2,297,000) -
Net change in fair values during the year 961 428
At the end of the year 124,829 13,101

The closing balance as at 31 December 2017 contains SR 29 milljon (2016: SR 13 million) representing wnit Jinked
investments.

¢) Available for sale financial assets

The movements in AFS investmenis were as follows:

2016
SR000
As at 1 January 6,578
Purchased during the yvear 566,000
Sold during the year : (557,356)
Net change in fair values 74
As at 31 December 15,096
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11 INVESTMENTS (continued)
ii) SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS
@) Finanrcial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial assets of Shareholders’ operations measured at amortised cost comprise of investments in Murabaha deposits
amounting to SR 83 million (2016: SR 180 million) with original maturities of more than three months. The fair value

of these investments are not materially different from their carrying values.

The movement during the vear is set out below:

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SKR*000 SR’00D
At the beginring of the year 180,000 190,000
Purchased during the year 330,109 700,060
Maturities during the year {425,035) {710,000)
At the end of the year, gross 85,074 180,000
Less: Impairment loss {58) -
At the end of the year, net 83,016 180,000
b) Financial assets mandatorlly measured at FVPL
The movement during the year is set out below:
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR'000 SR'O00
At the beginning of the year 82,047 77,314
Reclassification of equity investments from FVPL to FVQCI (82,047 -
Reclassification of investment from AFS toe FVPL 84,380 -
Purchased during the vear 552,486 99,390
Sold during the year {604,474) (99,5903
Net change in fair values during the year 89 4,733
At the end of the year 32,481 82,047
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11 INVESTMENTS (continuaed)

ii) SHAREHOLDERS® OPERATIONS

¢} Financial assets designated at FVOCI

The movement during the vear is set out below:

At the beginning of the year
Re-classified from FVPL

Balance of equity shares portfolio with Al Rajhi Capital
Cash balance with Al Rajhi Capital (4ffiiate)
Re-classified from Available-for-sale investments

Total at the beginning of the vear
Movement during the year
Purchased during the year
Sold during the year
Net change in fair values during the year
Net change in cash balance with Al Rajhi Capital

Closing balance of equity shares portfolio

Portfolio balance with Al Rajhi Capital at the end of the year
Cash balance with Al Rajhi Capital

Equity - onlisted shares

At the end of the year
Analysis of available-for-sale investments at 31 December 2016:
Equity - listed shares

Fund with Al Rajhi Capital

Sub total
Equity - unlisted shares

At the end of the year

The movements in AFS investments were as follows:

Asat | January
Purchased during the year
Disposgls during the year
Net change in fair values
As af 31 December

31-Dec-17
SR*000

82,047

79.648
2,399
1,923

83,970

62,139
(60,472)
1,552
(2,423)

34,766

31-Dec-16
SR’000

84,380

84,380
1,623

86,303

2016
SR'000

78,304
130,000
(122,242)
241
86,303
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11 INVESTMENTS (continued)
ii) SHAREHOLDERS® OPERATIONS (continued)
¢} Financial assets designated at FVOCH (continued)
Equity investments under listed shares comprise a portfolic of equities listed on the Saudi Arabian Stock
Exchange (“Tadawul™). Unlisted equity investments includes an investment amounting to SR 6,050 thousand

{2016: SR 1,923 thousand) in an unlisted company, registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Movement of net gains on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

31-Dec-17
SR*000
Total gains / (fosses) on fair value of investments classified under Other comptehensive
incorme
- quoted securities (180}
- unquoted securities 4,127
3,947
Amount recognised during the year on sale of quoted investments (2,395)
Net gains on equity invesiments designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income 1,552

d} Dividend income
The Company recognized SR 3,407 thousand of dividend income in the year 2017 from quoted securities. Qut
of this, SR 698 thousand were received against those securities which were derecognized during the year.

12 ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS

31-Dec-2017 3{-Dec-2016
SR'000 SR 000
Takaful Shareholders’ Takaful Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations

Advances to suppliers 6,094 5,403 4,723 1,121
Prepayments:

- Rent - 1,540 - 1,405

- Others 9,811 8,140 9,074 8,491

Accrued profit on murabaha deposits - 574 - 2,168

Deposits - 148 - 148

15,905 15,805 13,797 13,333
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13 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

4} Outstanding claims at year end are as follows:

3i-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016
Re-takaful Re-takafid
Gross share Net {iross share Ner
SR000 SR'O6H SR006 SR'000 SR000 SR'000
Outstanding at 31 December 279,126 {97,339 181,787 272,219 (76,560) 195,719
Incurred but not reported 614,104 - (45,134) 568,970 270,331 (19,149 251,182
893,230 (142,473) 750,757 542,610 (93,709) 446,901
Claims paid during the year (2,073,776) 31,920 (2,041,856) (1,128,852) 40,555  {1,088,297)
Outstanding at 1 JTanuary 272,279 {(76,560) 195,719 222,792 (103,822) 118,970
Incurred but not reported 270,331 (19,14%) 251,182 137,935 {6,592) 131,343
542,610 (95,709) 446,901 360,727 (110,414 250,313
Claims incurred 2,424,396 (78,684) 2,345,712 1,310,735 {25,850) 1,284,885

Gross IBNR includes other reserves amounting to SR. 25,090 thousand (2016: SR 12,921 thousand)

b) claim development:

The following table shows the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both ¢laims notified and
incurred but not reported for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative
paymenis to dafe.

Gross insurance contract outstanding claims provision for 2017:

2013 & 2014 2015 2016 2017 Toial
Accident year prior
years SR'000 SR’000 SR’006 SR’000 SKR'000
SR'000
Estimate of ultimate
claims cost at end of
accident year 866,457 703,184 1,168,238 1,197,584 1,211,659
One year later 852,460 737,346 1,434,800 1,609,322
Two years later 879,425 712,144 1,499,560
Three years later 836,387 781,282
Four years later 890,068
Current estimate of
cumulative claims
incurred 890,068 781,282 1,499,560 1,609,322 2,211,659 6,991,891
Cumulative payments
to date 886,866 778,507 1,461,548 1,565,306 1,406,434 6,098,661
Total gross insurance
cutstanding claims
provision per the
staternent of financial
position 3,202 2,775 38,012 44,016 805,225 893,230
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13. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (continued)
b) claim development {continued)

Gross insurance contract ontstanding claims provision for 2016:

2012 & 2013 2014 2015 2016 Toral
. prior
Accident year years SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR000

SR'000

Estimate of ultimate

claims cost at end of

accident year 347,379 519,078 703,184 1,168,238 1,197,584

One year later 341,482 510,978 737,346 1,434,800

Two years later 352422 527,003 772,144

Three years Jater 355,221 531,166

Four years later 356,604

Current estimate of

cumulative claims

neurred 356,094 531,166 772,144 1,434,800 1,197,584 4,292 388

Cumulative payments :

to date 347,891 523,764 738,778 1,377,386 741,959 3,749,778
Total gross insurance

outstanding claims

provision per the

statement of financial

position 8,503 7,402 13,366 57,414 455,625 542,610

14. MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED RE-TAKAFUL
COMMISSION INCOME AND UNEARNED CONTRIBUTION INCOME

a) Deferred policy acquisition costs
31-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016

SR'040 SR'000
Asat 1 Janvary 30,366 17,080
Incurred during the year 99,879 58,422
Amortised during the year (94,456) (45,136)
As at 31 December 35,789 30,366

b) Movement in uncarned re-takaful commission income
31-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016

SR'Go0 SR'000
As at 1 January 6,728 7,435
Received during the year 12,887 11,866
Earned during the year (12,243) (12,573)
As at 31 December 7,072 6,728
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14, MOYEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED RE-TAKAFUL
COMMISSION INCOME AND UNEARNED CONTRIBUTION INCOME (continued)

¢] Movement in unearned contribution income

31-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016
Re-takaful Re-takaful
Gross share Net Gross share Net
SR060 SR000 SR’600 SR’000 SRG00 SR 000
As at 1 January 996,386 (69.666) 926,720 678,322 (71,773) 606,549
Contributions written during the
year 3,193,474 (120456) 3,073,018 1,948,650 (92,297 1,856,353
Contribotions carned during the
year (2,885,750} 98,413 (2,787,337) (1,630,586) 94,404 (1,536,182}
Asg at 31 December 1,304,110 (91,709 1,212,401 996,386 {69,666) 926,720

15 PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHERS LIABILITIES

3i-Dec-2017
SR’000
Takaful Sharcholders’
operations aperations
Accounts payable and other liabilities 32,312 19,279
Accrued expenses 48,185 11,798
80,497 31,777
31-Dec-2016
SR000
Takaful Sharehoiders
operations ' operations
Accounts payabie and other liabilities 18,543 11,179
Accrued expenses 33,348 9.954
51,891 21,133

16. EMFLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

16.1 General description

The Company operates an end of service benefit scheme for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor
Laws. The liability in respect of the scheme is estimated by a qualified external actuary in accordance with
Internationat Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits, and using “Projected Unit Credit Method™.

16.2 The movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as Tollows:

Movement in Present value of end of service benefits 31-Dec-2017
SR’000¢
End of service benefits at the beginning of year 9,871
Current service cost 1,737
Interest cost 265
Re-measurement loss on end of service benefits -
Paid benefits {1,590)
Present value of end of service benefits af the end of year 10,283
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16. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

17,

16.2 The movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as follows: (continued)
The [iability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the scheme is the present value of the
defined benefit obligaticn at the end of the reporting period. The actuarial gains/losses for the year ended 31
December 2017, are nil.

End of service henefits expense (recognized in statement of income — 3i-Dec-2017
takaful operations) SR'000
Current service cost 1,737
Interest cost 265
2,002

16.3 The valuation of the defined benefit obligation and assumptions

Liability under the scheme is based on various assumptions ("actuarial assumptions") including the estimation
of the discount rate, inflation rate, expected rate of salary increase and normal retirement ages. Based on the
assumptions, cash outflows are estimated for the Company’s employees as a whole giving the total payments
expected over the fiure years, which are discounted to arrive at the obligation at the reporting date. Any
changes in actuarial assumptions from one period to another mey affect the determination of the estimated
obligation at the reporting date, which is aceounted for as an actuarial gain or loss for the period.

The principal actuarial assumptions {in respect of the employee benefit scheme) used for the valuation as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Basic actuarial assumptions as at: 31-Dec-2017

Discount rate per annum 3.4%
Expected rate of salary increase per annum 0.5%
Normal retirement age 60 years

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with the published
statistics and experience in the region.

ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

Restatement of changes in Shareholders® Equity

Effective 1 January 2017, based on the Circular issued by SAMA in relation to the 'Accounting of zakat and
income tax”, the Company amended its accounting policy to charge zakat into retained eamnings instead of
statement of income and comprehensive income - sharcholders operations.

The impact of change in the accounting policy has been disclosed in note 5.4

The Zakat and income tax payable by the Company has been calculated based on the best estimate of the
management,

a) The zakat charge for the vear has been computed as follows:
31-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016

SR000 SR'000

Equity 429,363 340,495
Opening allowances and other adjustments 61,431 46,311
Boaok value of long term assets (100,775) (92,294

396,019 204,512
Zakatable income for the year 229,981 121,488
Zakat base 620,000 416,000
Zakat @ 2.5% 15,500 10,400
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17.

18.

19,

20.

ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (continued)
Restatement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity {continued)

a) The zakat charge for the year has been computed as follows: (continued)

The differences between the income as per the financial statements and zakatable incoms (income subject to
zakat which is computed based on zakat rules) for the year used for zakat base is mainly dug to provisions, which
are not allowed in the calculation of zakatable income.

&) Movements in the Zakat and income tax accrued for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

Zakat payable
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR 000 SR 000
Balance at beginning of the year 18,391 9,368
Provided during the year 15,500 10,400
Payments during the year (7,401) 1,377
Balance at end of the year 26,490 13,391
Shareholdings
Following are the shareholding structure of the Company as on:
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Shareholding subject to Zakat 100.00% 100.00%

Status of assessments

The Company has filed Zakat and income tax returns for the financial years up to and including the year 2016
with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (the “GAZT™). Assessments for the years 2010 to 2016 are under
review by GAZT.

For the year 2011, the company has filed an appeal against the additional paid zakat sssessment of SR 1,852
thousand raised by the GAZT. The appeal is still pending.

SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized, issued and fully paid share capital of the Company consists of 40 million issued and fully paid
ordinary shares of SR 10 each,

STATUTORY RESERVE
In accordance with its bylaws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income each year to the statutory reserve
until it has built up a reserve equal to the capital.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Comtinpencies

Bank guaranjees

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s banker has issued leiters of guaraniee of SR 12,997 thousand (2016:
SR 11,847 thousand) to varipus motor agencies, workshops and health service providers as per the terme of the
agreements with them (note 7).
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20, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
a) Contingencies (continued)
Legal proceedings
The Company enters into takaful coniracis and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business,
While it is not precticable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings,
management does oot believe that any such proceedings (including litigation) that are in progress at reporting
date will have a material effect on its results and financial position. At the reporting date, cases with a total
exposure of approximately SR 7,621 thousand (2016: SR 810 thousand) are pending court decisions,

£} Commitments
The Company has no future capital commitment at the reporting date.

21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31-Pec-2017 31-Dec-2016

SR'000 SR’000
Employee costs 117,486 88.401
Office expenses 10,164 8.081
Depreciation and amortization (note 9} 8,037 9,179
Legal and professional fees 23,975 17,209
Information technology expenses 7177 6,564
Advertising and marketing expenses : 2,219 2,374
Communication expenses . 1,548 1,348
Travel and lodging expenses . 2,727 1,463
Others 268 78
173,601 135,297
22, FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
The movement during the year in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is set out helow:
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
SR’'000 SR'000
At the beginning of the year 14,196 5,712
Net changes in reserve during the year 15,438 8.056
Net change in fair values during the year 961 428
At the end of the year 30,595 14,196

22,1 This represents unit linked investments liabilities,
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23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

a) Transactions and balances with related parfies:
Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management persennel of the Company, and
companies which are principally owned by the shareholders and aoy other entities contrelled or significantly
influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management,

Following are the details of significant related party transactions during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 and for the year end balances as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

Related party

Al Rajhi Insurance Company Reimbursement from / (expenses

B.S.C.(c) (shareholder) paid) on behalf of related party

Al Rajhi Bank
{shareholder)

Affiliates

Al Rajhi Bank
{shareholder)

Affiliates

Al Rajhi Bank
{shareholder)

Affiliates

Al Rajhi Bank
fshareholder)

Nature of transaction

a) takaful operations

b) shareholders™ operations

Contribution - policies written

Contribution - policies written

Contributions receivable (note &)

Claims Paid
Claims Paid

Claims incurred and notified
during the petiod

Claims incurred and notified
during the petiod

Bank balance

(Takafid operations)
Bank balance
(Shareholders ' operations)

Bank balances

Amount of tramsactions for
the year ended

31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16

SR’000 SR’000
239) 743
1,330,545 1,017,324
24,201 55,949
1,023,048 731,670
16,441 82,311
1,047,137 876,195
15,072 38,455

Balance as at

31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16
SR'000 SR’000
353 592
(13 (13)
121,117 201912
22,784 34,030
143,301 235,542
3,743 3,738
1,143 2517
146,500 122,416
14,784 17.575
289,043 218,587
193 (785)
289,236 217,802
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23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

a) Transactions and bolances with related parties: (continued)

Amount of transactions lor the

Related party  Nature of transaction year ended Balance as at
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-l6 31 -Dec-17 31-Dec-l6
SRY00 SR*000 SR0M SRO00
Al Rajhi Capital lovestments managed by the
(Affitiate) affiliate
a) Takaful operations — purchase/
{s0ld) 95,671 7.695 56,376 28,197
b) Shareholders’ operations —
purchased/ (sold) {94,926) {103 32,481 84,380
745 7,685 88,857 112,577
Al Rajhi Capital Tncome received from sale of
(Affiliate) inyestment in Al Rajhi Capital
commodity fund
a) Takaful operations 5,370 2444 - -
b) Shareholders™ operstions 2,585 758 “ -
7,955 3.202 - -
Al Rajhi Capital  Investment management fee paid
(Affiitcte) to Al Rajhi Capital
a) Takaful operations 1.331 1,623 - -
b) Sharcholders® operations 926 1,484 - -
2,257 3,107 - -
Al Rajhi Bank  Investment in shares of Al Rajhi
(shareholder) Bank 444 551 13,679 13,011
Al Rajhi Takaful
Apency
(Subsidiary of
shareholders) Commissions 3,778 4,806 2,853 1,003

The investment portfolio designated as fair value through other comprehensive income is managed by Al Rajhi
Capital (Affiliatz). The total value of the portfolio as at 31 December 2017 is SR 79 miltion (2016; SR 82 million)
{refer note 11(ii) {c)}.

b} Compensation of Board, Conmmittees and Key Management Personnel:
Key management personnel of the Company may include executive, nonexecutive, and senior management staff,
The summary of compensation of key management personnel for the year is as follows:

For the year ended

31-Dee-17 31-Dec-16
SR°000 SR000

Remuneration of Board of Directors and other committees 1,340 1,147
Salaries and benefits of key management persornmnel 5,960 5,392
End of service benefit of key management personnel 324 204
Shariah committes remuneration 200 243
7.824 7,076
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24, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process, operating segments have been approved by management
in respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities. Information disclosed below is based on current
reporting to the Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ’), Operating segments do not include shareholders’ operations of

the Company.

Segment assets do not include takaful operations™ bank balances and cash, due from sharcholders” operations, net
contributions receivable and investments, etc. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated assets.

Segment liabitities do not include takaful operations® pavables, accruals and other liabilitics, amounts due to related
parties, management fee payable, re-takaful balances payable and financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit and
loss. Accordingly, they are included in unaliocated liabilities.

Far the year ended 31 December 2017

Protection
Operating seprents General Motor Health & Saving Total
SRO00

Gross contributions written 127,305 2,562,800 449,560 53,800 3,193474
Net contributions written 31,774 2,347,388 449,309 44,847 3,073,018
Net contributions earned 15,783 2,396,902 330,529 44,123 2,787,337
Folicy fee and other income 131 9,317 (1% 756 10,194
Re-takaful commission income 10,807 654 - 782 12,243
Total underwriting revenue 26,721 2,406,873 330,519 45,661 2,809,774
Net claims incurred (5,693) (2,079,045  (259,320) (1,654) (2,345,712
Inspection and supervision fees (433) {12,736) {6,743) (269 (20,181}
Policy acquisition costs (7,094) {61,381) (20,426) (5,555) {94,456)
Other expenses (342) 6,871 (1,204) (1,827 (10,250)
Change in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - - - {15,382) (15,382)
Other income - 5,800 - - 5,809
Total claims and other expenses (13,562)  (2,154,230)  (287,693) (24,687) (2,480,172)
Net underwriting surplus 13,159 252,643 42,826 20,974 329602
Special commission income 28,053

Net gains on investments mandatorily

measured at fair value through profit or loss 5.370
Impairment loss {416)

Management fee for administration of

takaful operations {173,601)
Net surplus for the year 18%,008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

24 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Protection
Operating segments General Moior Health & Saving Total
SR060

Gross contributions written 120,140 1,583,626 216,936 27,948 1,948,650
Net contributions writien 52,192 1,567,402 215,073 21,686 1,856,353
Net contributions earned 16,515 1,290,897 206,454 22,316 1,536,182
Policy fee and other income 103 6,279 - 207 6,589
Re-takaful commission income 10,501 2,072 - - 12,573
Total underwriting revenue 27,119 1,299.248 206,454 22,523 1,555,344
Net claims incurred (1,503)  {1,126,796} (155,853) £733) (1,284,885)
Inspection and supervision fees (402) (7.838)  (3,255) (139) (11,634)
Policy acquisition costs (6,637} (22,775 {12,203) (3,519 (45,136)
Cther expenses (477) {5,960} {865) {(1,031) (8,333)
Change in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - - - (8,604) (8,604)
Other income - 3,913 - - 3,913
Total claims and other expenscs (0,019 (1,159,456) (172,178)  (14,026) (1,354,679
Net underwriting surplus 18,100 139,792 34,276 8,497 200,665
Investment income 21,786

Management fee for administration of takaful

operations (135,297}
Net surplus for the year 87,154
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AL RAJHI COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

24 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

As ot 31 December 2017
Protection &
Takaful operations’ assets Genergl Moior Health  Saving Total
SR’000
Re-takaful share of outstanding ¢laims 110,829 22,612 - 9,032 142,473
Re-takaful share of unearned contributions 87,883 1,178 - 2,648 91,709
Defarred policy acquisition costs 10,777 11,992 12,662 338 35,789
Deposit against letters of guarantee (note 7) 51 10,793 2,147 [ 12,997

209,540 46,575 14,809 12,044 282,968

Unsalocated assets 2,477,008
Total takaful operations’ asseis 2,759,973
‘Fotal shareholders® operations’ assets ’ 874,405
Total assets 3,634,378
Takaful operations’ liabilities

Gross outstanding claims 118962 661,300 101,415 11,553 893,230
Gross unearned contributions : 164,005 931,895 204,819 3,388 1,304,110
Unearned re-takaful commission income 7072 - - - 7,072

290,039 1,593,198 Ho6,234 14,541 2,204,412
Unallocated liabilities and surplus 555,561

Total takaful operations’ liabilities and
surplus 2,759,973

Total shareholders’ operations? liabilities and
equity 874,405

Total takaful operations’ liabilities and
surplus and shareholders’ operations’
liabilities and equity 3,634,378
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24 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2016

Pratection &
Takafid operations’ assety General Mator Health Saving Total
SR'000
Re-takaful share of outstanding claims 82,606 7,411 - 3,692 95,709
Re-takafirl share of unearned contributions 66,287 2,000 - 1,379 69,666
Deferred policy acquisition costs 0,415 15,433 3,296 222 30,366
Deposit against letters of guarantee (note 7) 18 10,652 1,133 4 11,847
158,326 35,536 6,425 7,297 207,588
Unatlocated assets 1,640,795
Total takafil opsrations® assets 1,848,384
Total shareholders” operations’ assets 678,144
Total assets 2,526,528
Takaful operations’ liabilities
Gross cutstanding claims 87,754 409,854 37,550 7452 342,610
Gross unearned contributions 126417 782,236 86,038 1,695 096,386
Uneareed re-takaful commission income 6,728 - - - 6,728
220.89% 1,192,090 123,588 9,147 1,545,724
Unallocaied liabilities and surplus : 302,660
Total takaful operations’ liabilities and surplus 1,848,384
Total shareholders’ operations’ liabilities and
equity 678,144
Total takaful operations® liabilities and surplus
and sharehclders’ operations’ liabilities and
equity 2,526,528

24.1 Geographieal segments
The Company, during the years 2017 and 2016 operated only in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2017

25. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

26.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 has been calculated by
dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number of issued shares (40 million shares) for the
vear ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,

The principal or the mest advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

Determination of fair value and faiv value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities,

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly abservable,

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservahie.

TAKAFUL OPERATIONS — Financial assefs

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 December 2017 SR’ 000 SR 000 SR 000 SR’ a949
Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss — Funds 56,376 - 68,453 124,829

Total 56,376 - 68,453 124,829

Investments classified under level 3 represents investment under sharia compliant fund and is valued based on
net asset value. An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in pricing of investment would result in a Joss or gain
for the year of SR 683 thousand.

TAKAFUL OPERATIONS — Financials Rabilities

Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 December 2017 SR’ om0 SR’ 000 SR’ 000 SR’ 000
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 30,595 - - 30,595
Total 30,593 - - 30,595
TAKAFUL QPERATIONS — Financigl assets
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 December 2016 SR’ 004 SR' 000 SR’ 000 SR 0G¢
Available for sale financial assets - Funds 15,096 - - 15,096
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss — Funds 13,101 - - 13,101
Total 28,197 - - 28,197
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26. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27

23.

SHAREROLDERS' OPERATIONS

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total
As ot 31 December 2017 SR’ 000 SR’ 000 SR’ 000 SR’ 000
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss - Funds 32,481 - - 32,481
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income — Quoted securities 78,716 - - 78,716
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income — Unquoted securities - - 6,050 6,050
Total 111,197 - 6,050 117,247
Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 December 2016 SR’ 000 SR 000 SR’ 0t SR’ 000
Avasilable for sale financial assets - Funds 84,380 - - 84,380
Available for sale financial assets ~ Unquoted
securities - - 1,923 1,923
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss — Quoted securities 82,047 - - 82,047
Total 166,427 - 1,923 168,350

For financial instruments that are recognised at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchies
during the year,

The fair value increase of SR 1,552 thousand (2016: increase of SR 4,733 thousand) in respect of FVOCI equity
investments was recorded in statement of other comprehensive income — shareholders’ operations

Unqueted investment are valied based on the net asset value of [atest available financial statement. An increase
or decrease of 100 basis points in pricing of investment would result in a loss or gain for the year of SR 61
thousand.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 20 Jumasds al-thani 1439 H,
corrgsponding to 8 March 2018,
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